


Planning & Zoning Commission                                                            Page 1 of 4 
Minutes – October 31, 2019      

        PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 
        MINUTES October 31, 2019 

               PRESCOTT, ARIZONA 
 
MINUTES of the PRESCOTT PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING held on October 31, 
2019 at 9:00 AM in COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 201 S. CORTEZ STREET, PRESCOTT, 
ARIZONA 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Chairman Sheats called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.   
 

II. ATTENDANCE 
 

 
III.

 REGULAR AGENDA ITEM 
 
  1.  Approval of the October 10, 2019 Meeting Minutes. 
 

A motion was made by Commissioner Roop to approve the October 10, 2019 minutes. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Gambogi and approved unanimously. 
 
2.  SIG19-004, Proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan for Bashford Courts; 130 W. Gurley Street; 
Property Owner/ Applicant: Craig Hannay; APN 113-15-116. 
 
Planning Manager George Worley gave a recap of the previous presentation regarding the 
Bashford Courts sign plan and presented new photos with revised signage.  The changes were 
based on recommendations from the Planning Commission and the Preservation Commission.  
Changes include: naming goods and services on front facing signs (versus business names), 
creating a business directory at street level, and creating signage on the west side of the building 
(not exceed 100 sq ft). 
 
Commissioners, staff and applicant discussed the sign plan submittal including: changes that 
were made to the sign plan, square footage and lighting of proposed signs, maximum allowable 
square footage per code, similar signage in the downtown area, visibility of signage (for both 
pedestrians and vehicle traffic) and concerns regarding the addition of the west wall signage. 
 
Applicant Craig Hannay spoke to the Commission regarding the tenants’ wants and needs as well 
as his experience walking and driving around the building to assess existing signage. 
 

BOARD MEMBERS STAFF MEMBERS 
George Sheats, Chairman  George Worley, Planning Manager 
Ken Mabarak  Michelle Chavez, Recorder 
Terry Marshall (Absent) Bryn Stotler, Comm. Development Director 
Ted Gambogi  Tammy DeWitt, Community Planner 
Mel Roop  Cat Moody, Historic Pres. Coordinator 
Don Michelman COUNCIL 
George Lee  Councilman James Lamerson 

Councilman Phil Goode 



Planning & Zoning Commission                                                            Page 2 of 4 
Minutes – October 31, 2019      

Cat Moody spoke regarding the paint and lighting plan that was approved by the Preservation 
Commission.  The Preservation Commission also approved the comprehensive sign plan being 
presented today.  
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Gambogi to approve SIG19-004. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Lee and the motion passed (4 to 2) with Commissioners Roop 
and Michelman voting no.   
 

2. SIG19-005, Proposed Comprehensive Sign Plan for The Prescott Self Storage; 3057 
Centerpointe East Dr.; Property Owner: Travart LLC; Applicant: Morgan Sign Co. APN 103-01-
580A and C. 
 
Community Planner Tammy DeWitt gave an overview of the proposed comprehensive sign plan 
for Prescott Self Storage. She shared aerial and street view photos of the site and discussed the 
proposed square footages of the signage, as well as which signs will be illuminated. 
 
Commissioners and staff discussed the location of signage and concerns regarding the size of 
Sign B, which is proposed at nearly 10 times larger than Land Development Code allows. They 
discussed other, oversized commercial signs that have been approved, as well as concerns from 
neighbors near the industrial area regarding illuminated signs. The reasons for the oversized sign 
were discussed as well as its congruence to the current code. 
 
Mr. Stephan Markov from Morgan Sign spoke to the Commission regarding the sign proposal, 
which is requesting maximum sign visibility from the highway.  The only sign illuminated will be 
Sign B. 
 
Chair Sheats asked if the signs were already in place and the applicant indicated no. 
 
Ms. Dewitt explained how sign square footage allowance is calculated per code; Commissioner 
Roop suggested to staff that a review of the comprehensive sign plan provisions might be 
beneficial. 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Gambogi to approve SIG19-005. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Lee.  The motion failed (3-3). Commissioners Roop, 
Michelman and Mabarak voted against the motion. 
 
Commissioner Roop made a motion to approve SIG19-005 with the condition to reduce the 
height of Sign B from 7 feet to 4 feet high, the motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Gambogi. The motion passed (5-1). Commissioner Mabarak voted no.  
 
Commissioner Mabarak reiterated his concerns with the signage, stating the size is too large and 
the community does not need more oversized signs. Mr.  Markov replied that the prior signage 
was about the same size on a smaller building and the purpose of the sign is to let customers 
know where to go, not to generate more business. 

 
3. PLN19-018, Proposed rezoning of Whispering Rock subdivision from its current Business General 

(BG) designation to Business Regional (BR) to accommodate a large medical facility and 
continued development of medically related businesses. The property owner is Prescott 
Whispering Rock, LLC. APNs are 106-02-009G, 106-02-003V, 106-02-003G, 106-02-003K, 106-
02-004F, 106-02-003U, 106-02-003Y, and 106-02-004G. 

 



Planning & Zoning Commission                                                            Page 3 of 4 
Minutes – October 31, 2019      

Mr. Worley gave an overview of the history of the project site.  He showed a zoning map and 
aerial view of the properties. He explained that there is not currently a Special Use Permit 
application submitted for a height exception, but it is anticipated that such will be submitted for a 
hospital. He explained that Special Use Permits get reviewed by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the City Council and that height exception requests are rare. 
 
Mr. Worley clarified that the applicant would like to rezone the entire Whispering Rock 
development to Business Regional. He also shared a conceptual site drawing submitted by the 
hospital and indicated that a signalized intersection will be added to increase safety of exiting the 
site onto Willow Creek Road. 
 
Commissioners and staff discussed previous maps and how the project has changed via land 
acquisitions.  The focus for the site is primarily medical, yet other uses such as a hotel and/or 
restaurant(s) are possible. 
 
Applicant Doctor Hojat Askari explained that the project’s main focus is to develop a hospital to 
serve all of Northern Arizona, which has a great need for more medical care, specifically in the 
areas of cancer treatment and memory care.  They are partnering with Banner Health on the 
project. He noted there is also a great need for medical office space.  Embry Riddle has 
expressed support for the project in generating jobs for students.  Dr. Askari stated he wants to 
keep the current trails on site public and to maintain the views of the boulder outcroppings on the 
property. 
 
Chairman Sheats asked if this would be a different level of trauma center than what we currently 
have.  Dr. Askari indicated that it isn’t planned currently to be a high level trauma center but may 
be in the future.  
 
Former Prescott Mayor Marlin Kuykendall spoke to the Commission about the project and how 
long there has been a need for it in this community, noting that it fits the location well.  He further 
stated when he was Mayor he supported the project.   
 
Paul Klum of Banner Health spoke to the Commission regarding the non-profit medical 
corporation which focuses on more than just acute care.  The goal is to get closer to the patients 
in the community and prevent them from reaching the need for acute care.  To get a licensed 
hospital you need to be able to transport patients out, but not necessarily in. The proposed 
hospital will not focus on high level trauma. Mr. Klum also stressed the importance of the hospital 
to be able to develop the property with a structure above 50 feet in order to be more efficient. 
 
Dr. Askari reiterated that this project aims to make Prescott a medical destination. 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Mabarak to approve PLN19-018. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Lee.  The motion passed unanimously.  

 
IV. STAFF UPDATES:  

None 
 

V. SUMMARY OF CURRENT OR RECENT EVENTS 
None 
 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
       



Planning & Zoning Commission                                                            Page 4 of 4 
Minutes – October 31, 2019      

 Chairman Sheats adjourned the meeting at 10:26 a.m. 
 
 
 
Michelle Chavez, Recorder 
 

  
George Sheats, Chairman 

 
 
 



~/~ 
crrYm· PRESCOTT 

Ev7/;fJ H ,MiettJ@/{/ PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEMO 

MEETING DATE: January 9, 2020 

AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing for a proposed rezone at 621 E. Rosser St., amending 
the zoning from Single Family 35 (SF-35) to Multi- Family Medium Density (MF-M) to 
allow for the construction of 3 single family residences. [Property owner: Pine Creek 
Leasing LLC. Applicant/Agent: Keith Hughes. APNs: 105-03-0078, 1.91 acre] 

Approved By: Date: 
Director: Bryn Stotler 

Planning Manager: George Worley 

Community Planner: Tammy DeWitt 

Item Summary 
This is a request to rezone a vacant 1.91 acre parcel , from Single Family 35 (SF-35) to 
Multi- Family Medium Density (MF-M) to allow for the construction of 3 single family 
residences on a single parcel. The rezoning of the subject parcel would allow the 
applicant to build 3 single family residences that will be rentals on the southern half of the 
property while the northern half on the other side of Rosser street will remain vacant due 
to the floodplain. The owner has no plans to plat lots to be sold as individual residential 
parcels. 

Background 
The applicant has requested a rezone from Single Family 35 (SF-35) to Multi- Family 
Medium Density (MF-M) to allow for the construction of 3 single family residences. The 
proposed uses are consistent with the MF-M zone. Under the current SF-35 zoning 
district, only 2 single family residential parcels could be developed. The applicant does 
not want to create separate parcels for sale, but wants to develop 3 single family 
residences on 1 parcel to reduce the infrastructure costs and the property will remain as 1 
parcel with 3 separate houses for rent. 

The properties adjacent to the subject parcel, across the street to the north, west and 
south are zoned Single Family 35 (SF-35). The parcels to the east are zoned Single 
Family 18 (SF-18 PAD) and part of the Cloudstone Unit 1 subdivision . 

2015 General Plan 
The site is identified as Low-Medium Density Residential (1-7 DU/Acre) on the 2015 
General Plan Land Use Map. Therefore, the proposed rezone from Single Family 35 (SF-
35) to Multi- Family Medium Density (MF-M) is consistent with the 2015 General Plan. 



AGENDA ITEM: Public Hearing for a proposed rezone at 621 E. Rosser St., amending 
the zoning from Single Family 35 (SF-35) to Multi- Family Medium Density (MF-M) to 
allow for the construction of 3 single family residences. [Property owner: Pine Creek 
Leasing LLC. Applicant/Agent: Keith Hughes. APNs: 105-03-0078, 1.91 acre] 

Site Design 
The proposed site design includes 3 individual homes with 2 car garages. Per the Letter 
of Intent, the applicant states that the development will be consistent with the adjacent 
SF-18 development due to the site layout, separation of individual units, and the units will 
be placed to minimize impact on views for the neighboring lots .. 

Impacts on Adjacent Properties 

A consideration of any rezoning request is the potential adverse impacts on adjacent or 
nearby property owners. The nearby contiguous parcels are either vacant or developed 
under an SF-18 density as a PAD development which allowed the homes to be developed 
on smaller lots with reduced setbacks. The development of this lot with 3 single family 
residences may be compatible with the adjacent development due to the proposed density 
being similar. The property north of Rosser Street is to remain vacant similar to adjacent 
Open Space that was part of the PAD development. 

Attachments 
1. Applicants Letter of Intent 
2. Aerial Vicinity Map 
3. Zoning Map 
4. Pictures of Property 
5. Applicant's Site plan 

Recommended Action: 

1. MOVE to recommend approval of PLN19-020, a Rezone from Single Family 35 (SF-
35) to Multi- Family Medium Density (MF-M). 

2 



-:~ HBC ~~~ 

Hughes Building Company 

November 21 , 2019 

City of Prescott - Community Development Department 
201 S. Cortez 
Prescott, AZ 86301 

Re: 600 E. Rosser Street 
APN # 105-03-0078 

Letter of Intent 

. Rezone from SF-35 to MF (Multi-Family) for the construction of three (3) individual patio 
homes with 2-car garages. This development will be esthetically pleasing to the area 
and fits in with the local density of SF-18 due to the site layout and separation of 
individual units. Units will be located up high with views, separated approximately 60 
feet from each other, and will have minimal to no impact on views for the neighboring 
lots. 

Keith Hughes 
c/o Pine Creek Leasing, LLC. 

PO Box 12615, Prescott, AZ 86304 





•• 











UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

UGP

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

8W

SS

W

W

W

W

W

SS

SS

S
S

W

5430

5440

5426

5426

54
28

5432

5434

5436

5438

5442

5444

5446

20.0'

12.0'

20.0'

12.0'

80.0'

25.0'

N89°27'45"E
327.53'

N
1°
21
'3
4"
W

10
41

.6
9'

N89°09'35"W
327.75'

ROSSER STREET

60.0'

30.0'

20.0'

38.0'

54
30

5426

5428

54
32

5434

5436

5438

5420

5420

5416

5416

54
18

5418

54
22

5422

54
24

5424

54
26

5426

5428

DATE:

DRAWN BY:

CHECKED BY:

SHEET

D
A

TE
R

E
V

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S

P
.O

. B
O

X
 6

42
C

H
IN

O
 V

A
LL

E
Y

, A
Z 

 8
63

23

92
8.

92
5.

75
43

M
IC

H
A

E
L@

M
R

LC
E

N
G

.C
O

M

CONSULTING

M
R

L 
C

O
N

S
U

LT
IN

G
, L

LC

OF

SCALE:

N

SITE BENCHMARK

CENTERLINE

RIGHT-OF-WAY

PROPERTY LINE

EASEMENT

LEGEND

MAJOR CONTOUR LINE

MINOR CONTOUR LINE

1900

FLOWLINE

SETBACK

EXST MAJOR CONTOUR LINE

EXST MINOR CONTOUR LINE

SS

W

UGP

SEWER SERVICE LINE
WATER SERVICE LINE
UNDERGROUND POWER

N

VICINITY MAP
(NTS)

PROJECT
SITE

0

SCALE: 1" =

301530

30'

Contact Arizona 811 at least two full
working days before you begin excavation

Call 811 or click Arizona811.com
BLUE STAKE, INC.

D
:\P

ro
je

ct
s\

H
ug

hs
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

C
o\

A
P

N
 1

05
-0

3-
00

7B
\D

W
G

\0
07

_D
ES

IG
N

.d
w

g
 - 

11
/5

/2
01

9 
7:

51
 P

M

THIS SITE IS LOCATED IN ZONE "AE", AREAS WHERE BASE FLOOD ELEVATIONS DETERMINED, PER
THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP COMMUNITY PANEL 04025C2051H. YAVAPAI COUNTY, ARIZONA
DATED MARCH 6, 2018.

FLOOD ZONE

EXISTING UTILITY LOCATIONS SHOWN HERON ARE APPROXIMATE ONLY. IT SHALL BE THE
CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO DETERMINE THE EXACT VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL LOCATION
OF ALL EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES PRIOR TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION. NO
REPRESENTATION IS MADE THAT ALL EXISTING  UTILITIES ARE SHOWN HEREON. THE ENGINEER
ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITIES NOT SHOWN IN THEIR PROPER LOCATION.

DISCLAIMER NOTE

60
0 

E
 R

O
S

S
E

R
 S

T
P

R
E

S
C

O
TT

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

A
P

N
 1

05
-0

3-
00

7B

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

11/5/2019

JAL

MRL

1" = 30'

1 1

G1

SEWER MANHOLE

WATER METER

CURBSTOP

S
W

1/2" REBAR w/CAP

CATV CABLE TV / COMMUNICATIONS

OWNER: PINE CREEK LEASING, LLC
1235 WILLOW CREEK ROAD
PRESCOTT, AZ 86301

PROJECT LOCATION: 600 E ROSSER STREET
PRESCOTT, AZ   86301

PARCEL NUMBER: 105-03-007B

SITE AREA: 1.91 ACRES

ZONING: SF-35

BUILDING CODE: INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE-2012

OCCUPANCY: GROUP R-2   RESIDENTIAL OCCUPANCY - APARTMENTS
AGE RESTRICTED. MIN. ONE SENIOR PER APARTMENT
NO OCCUPANTS UNDER 18 YEARS OF AGE

TYPE OF CONSTRUCTION: VB (I.B.C)

LOT COVERAGE: 12%

NUMBER OF STORIES: SINGLE STORY - 3 UNITS

BUILDING FLOOR AREA: SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL  -  SINGLE STORY
BUILDING AREA   = 1,800SF

PROJECT INFORMATION

BLOWOFF

100-YR WATER
SURFACE LIMITS

RELOCATE EXST
FH, CONNECT TO
EXST WATER LINE

PROPOSED UTILITY
EASEMENT AND
WATER METER

PROPOSED UTILITY
EASEMENT AND SEWER

MAIN EXTENSIONS


	PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
	Sheets and Views
	Grading Plan


